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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Forte Furniture Products India Pvt Ltd

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Forte Furniture Products India Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information(herein after referred to as Standalone Financial Statements)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and its loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No0.33.5 to the financial statements, which explains the
uncertainties and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic situation on the Company’s financial
results as assessed by the management.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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Other Matter

Due to the COVID-19 related lock-down restrictions, management was not able to perform
year end physical verification of inventories and the same was carried out on another date
subsequent to the year-end. Owing to the continuing lockdown conditions and travel
restrictions prevailing on the date of such management verification, we were unable to
participate in the same. Consequently, we have adopted alternative audit procedures to
ascertain the existence of inventory as at the balance sheet date as per the guidance note
issued by the ICAI on “Physical Inventory Verification - Key Audit Considerations amid COVID-
19" and “SA 501- Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for selected items” and have
obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to issue unmodified audit opinion on these
financial statements in respect of the same.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
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safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

eldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

«Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Y

N




//,'_

Place: Chennai
Date : 24" June 2020

Oy‘ Oy “Sreela Terrace”
PRI g‘ arma Level-4, Unit-D, 105, First Main Road
%ﬂ@ l il et Gandhi Nagar, Adyar

Chennai - 600 020
Ph: +91 44 2445 2239, 2442 3496
E-mail : chennai@uarmaandvarma.com
(b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

(g) Provisions of Section 197 to the Act is not applicable to the company, being a private
limited company

(h)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

(i)the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

(iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For Varma & V
Chartered Acc
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ANNEXURE‘A’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING REPORT ON
“OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FORTE
FURNITURE PRODUCTS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 .03.2020

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(i)

a. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. We are informed that fixed assets have been physically verified by the
Management at reasonable intervals and that no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable
properties and accordingly the reporting requirement of the order is not applicable.

We are informed that the physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year and the year-end verification has
been carried out on a date subsequent to the Balance sheet date in view the facts stated
in Other matter para in the Independent Auditors Report. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies/firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and hence, the relative reporting requirements under Clause 4(iii) of the
Order is not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company has not made any investments, granted any
loans or given any security or guarantee for which the provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Act are applicable.

The company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act for the company.

N\
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a. Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, have been
deposited regularly by the company with the appropriate authorities during the year
and no undisputed amounts in respect of material statutory dues were in arrears as
at 31st March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise value added tax and goods &
service tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as at
31.03.2020

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the records of the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans to banks. The Company has neither taken any loans or borrowings
from government, any financial institution nor has issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, no monies were raised by way of initial public offer or
further public offer(including debt instruments). The company has applied the Term
loans for the purpose for which the same was obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instances of material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or
employees which has been, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

Provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the
company and hence reporting under this clause is not commented upon.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been
duly disclosed in Note 28 to the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standard.
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based the records of the
Company examined by us, the company has not made any preferential allotment/private
placement of shares or fully or partially convertible debentures during the year under
review and hence the requirements of Section 42 of the Act are not Applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based the records of the
Company examined by us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with the directors. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the company is not required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting requirement
under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Varma & Varma

Place: Chennai
Date : 24" June 2020
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FORTE
FURNITURE PRODUCTS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH
2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Forte Furniture
Products India Private Limited(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Yarma & Varma

%//f:a/m"efxed X ocountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Varma &\
Chartered A

Place: Chennai
Date : 24" June 2020
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited [
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 20
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless ntherwise stated)
! As at As at
- Nots 31t Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
1 ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
() Property, Plant and Eguipment 3 127.03 148.64
by Capital Work in Progress i
(c) Right of Use Assets 4 243529
d)  Other Intangble Assets 3 174 6.62
(e) Fimaneial Assets
{1} Loans (i 4225 18296
(f Ohther nun-current assets 7 2.0 65.63
] Income tax assers (net) 49.53 37.03
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 273297 2,648.49
(h)  Linancial Assets
(1) Trade recevables 9 1,168.41 1,958.77
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1k 19.58% #1.98
() Bank balances other than (i) above b 1.26 1.26
(iv) Luany G 292 57.7%
i) Olther current assers 7 200,12 6416
N Total Assets 6,960.14 5,553.92
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
()  Equity
() Eguity Share capital 11 360100 2,801.00
b)  Other Equity 12 (7.303.44) (4,740.13)
(3,702.49) (1,939.13)
LIABILITIES
(1)  Non-current liabilities
() Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 188301 1,276.13
() Orther financial habihnes 13 210532
(b} Provisions 17 33324 4217
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilines
(1) Borrowngs 133 2.840.28 2.864.84
(1) Trade Payables 14
(a) Dues to MSME 17359 93,24
(b) Othan than (a) above 2,230,058 226475
(1) Other financial habilines 15 Loguo7 539,38
(b) Other cureent liabihnies 16 43.27 42.55
¢ ) Provisions 17 84.74 GU.UY
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,960.14 5,553.92
Summary of significant accountmng polices 2
The accompanying notes are an ntegeal part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Varma & Varma For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Forge Furniture Prodycts India Private Limite
. I —
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Kur{r\ur Gandhi / zcygiel
Partner ' CEO
Membefshup No: 25854 L oe3ntan 1DIN: US4136040
Place : Chennas Pigee - Gurgaon Blace : Chennm

Date : 24th June 2020 24th June 2020 Pate « 24th June 2020

axmian
Company Secretary Chief inancml Officer
M.Nos A41395

Place  Chennas Place 4 hennn

hare - 24th [ung 2020 Dare - 24th fune 2020




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2020
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes  Year ended 31st  Year ended
March, 2020 3lst March,
2019
1 INCOME
Revenue from operations 18 0,603,306 8.736.72
Other income 19 B8.04 204.67
Total Income (1) 6,691.40 8,941.39
I EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials consumed 20 3,107.06 3,048.65
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 66666 1,277.44
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progeess and stock-in-rrade 21 11180 83.67
Employee benefits expense 22 1,749.32 1,823.00
Finance costs 23 929.79 HI0.58
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 38319 2361
Other expenses 25 23371 1.834.26
Total expenses (IT) 9,285.54 10,491,81
I Loss before exceptional items and tax (I-11) (2,594.14) (1,550.42)
IV Exceptonal Ttems = =
V Loss before tax (I11-IV) (2,594.14) (1,550.42)
VI Tax expense: 30
(1) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax - .
VII Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI) (2,594.19) (1,550.42)
VII Other Comprehensive Income 30.83 (51.18)
A Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 34 30.83 (51.18)
Income tax effect = -
IX Totl Comprehensive Income for the pedod (V1L + VIII) (2,563.31) (1,601.60)
X Earnings per equity share; Face Value Rs, 10 per Share
(1) Basic 37 B.94) (5.54)
(2) Diluted 37 (8.94) (5.54)
Summary of significant accountng palices

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staements,

As per our report of even date,

For Varma & a

Chartered Accc
SAT Fiem RGA

umber: 0045328

mbership No: 25854
Place : Chennai
Date : 24th June 2020

ra

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Forte, Furniture Products India Private Limited

DIN: 06369107
Plate : Gurgaon

Date ; 24th June 2020

Laxman
Company Seeretary
M. N A413595
Place - Chennu

Dare © 24¢h June 2020

DIN: U8413646
Place : Chenna
Date ¢ 24th June 2020

Bijay KumarBiswal

Chief Finanetal Officer




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 01st April 2019 28010000 2,801
Issue af share capital BU,00,000 800
As at 31st March 2020 3,60,10,000 3,601

(b} Other equity

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Particulars Surplus in the st of |Re Total
profit and loss Gain/(Loss) on
defined benefit

obligation

As on 0lst April 2019 (4,740.13) - (4,740.13)
Loss for the year (2,5394.14) z (2,394.24)
Other comprehensive mcome - 30,83 30.83

Total comprehensive income (7,334.27) 30.83 (7,303.49)
Appropriation towards general reserve .
At 31 March 2020 {7,334.27) 30.83 (7,303.44)

The accompanying notes ate an integeal part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behulfl of the board of directors of

Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Q.

umar Gandhi Andrzej Szey
Diregtor WTD & CEO

bership Na: 23854 DIN: e3ev107 DN UB41364G

umber: 00045325

Place : Chennat Place © Gurgaon Place « Chenmay
Date : 24th June 2020

Draredth June 2020 Date - 24th Juae 2020

-

Bijay Kumar Biswal

Company Secretary Chiel Financsl Cifficer
M.No: A41395
Phice : Cheana Place : Chennai

Dute : 24th June 2020 Date  24th june 2020




Forte Fumniture Products India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31 March 2020
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 3lst Mar 2020 3lst Mar 2019
Operating Activities
Loss before tax (2,563.31) (1,601.60)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciaton /Amortisations on Tangible & Intanmble Assets 38319 23.61
liinance income [4.82) (12.62)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 8322 153250
Finance costs 929.79 40158
Operating (loss) before working capital changes (1,171.92) (1,037.47)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in Inventories (B4.48) (108.99)
Increase in T'rade receivables 70713 (BT9.58)
Decrease m Financial assers Loans 13536 4.67
Decrease in Other assets 97.64 36110
Inerease i Trade payables 45.03 683.62
Increase in Other financial / Current liabilites 100467 128,19
Increase in Provisions (74.17) 61.8Y
Cash (used) in operations 680.07 (TR6.86)
Income tax pud (11.89) (16,38)
Net cash flows (used) in operating activities 668.17 (803.24)
Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,799.00) (132.32)
Investment in deposits .00
Proceeds from redemption of deposits
Intevest receved +.82 12.62
Net cash from investing activities (2,794.19) (119.69)
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of shoret term borrowings 210532
Proceeds from short term borrowings 175.45 127167
Proceeds from sssuance of equity shares BO0.00
Inter Corporate Deposit / HCH receved ROG.88 (47 Y5)
Inter Corporate Deposit repaid (40010
Payment of lease oblgation (494.25)
Interest pad (929.79) (400.58)
Net Cash flows from / (used) in Financing Activities 2,063.61 823.14
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (62.41) (99.80)




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31 March 2020
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 81.98 181.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 19.58 81.98
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at period end
Cash in hand 1276 56.14
Cheques,/ drafts in hand (.61 7.62
Balances with scheduled banks
- i eurrent accounts 0.22 14.22
- n eash credit account i =
19.58 81,98
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information

Forte Furniture Product India Private Ltdis a joint venture between Zuari Gloabal Limited (an Advents geoup company) |, Indian Fumiture Product
Leda subsidiary of Zuar Global Limited and FABRYK] MEBLT "FORTE" S.A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland. The Company is engaged in
manufacturing and trading ready to assemble furmure (RTAF). The Company markets the product under the brand name of Style Spa and Zuari,
The Registered office of the Company 1s located ar G 106, SICO) Industaal Estate, Kakkalur, Thicuvallue, Tamal Nadu 602003, Indi

The fnancal strements were authonsed for ssue i accordance waith a resolution of the meenng of Board of directors held on 24th June 2020
2 Significant Accounting Policies

21 Basis of preparation
211 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared i accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Compasies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, The Company has
prepared these financral statements to comply i all matenial respects with the accounning standards notified uader Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 (the Act™),

The preparanon of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptons that affecr the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and labilstes, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosur¢ of contingent labilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in utcomes that require a material adjustment o the earrying amount of assets or habilities affected in furure

periods.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal eost basts, except certun other financal assets and liabilites which  have been measuged
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial mstruments).
The financual statements are presented in Lakhs of Indun Rupee (Rs.) except where otherwise indicared.

22 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and labtlites 1n balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset fs current when it is:
(1) Expecred ro be reabsed or mtended to be sold or consumed in normal ppesnng cyele

(u} Held pamanly for the purpose of tracding

(i) Expected to be reabsed within nwelve months after the reporting penod, or

(1v) Cash or cash equivalent unless restacted from beng exchanged or used 1o settle a bability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A lability 15 current when:

(i) Ir1s expected to be sertled in normal operating cycle

(it) It 1s held prnmanly for the purpise of trading

(115} [t1s due to be settled wathin twelve months after the reportng period, or

(tv) There 15 no uncunditonal ght to defir the sertlement of the lubiity for at least twelve months after the reporting peiod

The Company classifies all other abihies as non-cuerent

Deferred rax assets and habilmes are classified as non-current assers and labilines.

The operating cycle 15 the nme between the acquisiion of assers for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equvalents. The Company has

wentified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ocdery transaction berween market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place
cither:

() In the principal market for the asser or hability, or

(i1} Tn the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliey

The pancipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a hability 1s measured using the assumpnons that market participants would use when prcing the assct or habilicy,
assumung that market pacticipants act in their economue best interest,

A farr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes nto account a marker parnepant’s ability to generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by sclling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and fior which sufficient data are available to measure faie value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mininusing the use of unobscrvable npurs.

All assets and habilities for which fur value s measured or diselosed in the financial statements are categonsed withi the far value hierarchy,
desenibed as follows, based on the lowest level nput that 15 sgmificant to the faur value measurement as a whole:




(1) Level 1 — Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assers or labdines
(i) Level 2 — Valuation techmques for which the lowest level mput that 1 sigmificant to the fair value measurement dircetly or indirectly observable

(i) Level 3 — Valuanion techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s sigmficant o the far value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financual statements on a recurnng basis, the Company  determines whether transfers have
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level inpur that 15 significant to the faic value
measurement as 4 whole) at the end of cach reporting peniod

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant asscts, such as properties and unquoted financil assets, and significant babiites, such as
contingent consideranon, 1f any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements i the vilues of assers and habilives which are reguired to be re-measured or re-
assessed as per the Company’s accountng policses For ths analysis, the minagement venfivs the mapr mputs appled m the latest valuation by
agreeing the informacon in the valuaton computation to contracts and other eelevint documents

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s extemal valuers, also compares the change n the farr value of each asser and habibty with
relevant external sources to determune whether the change 1s eeasonable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determned classes of assets and labilines on the basis of the nature, charactenstcs and
nisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as expluned above.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fur value or where fair values are disclosed i the
relevant notes.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciuen and impaurment i value, if any. Cost includes purchase prce,
(inclustve of import duties and non — refundable purchase raxes, after deducnng trade discounts and rebates) and orher coses directly attrburable o
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the mannaer intended by management. The cost of Assets
not teady for use as at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed under Caprtal Work-In-Progress.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of propesty, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(a) it is probable thar future economic benefits associared with the item will flow to the entity; and

(1) the cost of the item can be measured relibly.

When significant parts of piant and equipment are required to be replaced at mtervals, Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewsse, when a major mspection 15 performed, its cost 15 recogmsed i the carrving amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recogmition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and mamtenanee costs are recogrused in profit or loss as mcurred.

Gans or losses ansing from de—recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the carrping amount of
the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset s derecopgnized

Spate pasts are capitalized when they meet the defimtion of PPE, Le., when the Company mtends to use these dunng more than a penod of 12
months

Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment is generally computed on a pro-rata basis on the basis of the estimated hife specified in Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act, 2013 under Straight line method. The useful life of assets presenbed i Schedule 11 w0 the Companses Act, 2013 are considered
for the purpose of Computation of Depreciation. However, if the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asserat the nme of acquismon of
the asset or of the remaining useful life on an annual review 15 different from that envisaged in the aforesad schedule, depreciation s provided ata
such rate based on the useful ife / remaimng useful bfe as rechnscally advised. Deprecianon s peovided based on the useful bfe indicated below.

Nature of tangible asset Useful life(years)
Plant & Equipment 10-15
Fuemture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers 3-6

| Leaschold Improvements 3

The residual vahies, useful lives and methods of deprecrtion of property, plant and equpment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropoate.

Intangible asscts

Intangsble assets i the nature of computer software are amortised over three yeaes on a steaght-ne basis based on management's estimates.

Intangible assets with finite hives are amortised over the useful cconomic life and assessed for impmement whenever there 15 an indication that the
intangible asset may be impared. The amortisation period and the amornsation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful bfe are reviewed at
least at the end of cach reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benefits
embodied i the asser are considered 1o modify the amornsabon peood or merthod, as appropoate, and ace rreated as changes a0 accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of

carrying value of another asser.




Gams or losses ansing from de-recogmition of an intangble asset are measused as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and are recogrmsed m the statement of profit or loss when the asset s derecogrised

Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted IndASTL6 ‘Leases’ and applied to all lease contracts existing on 1 Apal 2019 using the modified
retrospective transiton method. Consequently, the lease lability 15 measured at the present value of remaming lease payments discounted at
ncremental borrowing rate applicable at the date of nital application and the nght-of-use asset has been recognized at an amount equal to lease
lability. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported as per Ind AS
1.

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contans a lease, at meeption of a contract, A contract s, or contauns, a lease if the contract conveys the
ught to control the use of an awdennfied asset for a penod of hme i exchange for consideranon. To assess whether 2 conteact conveys the nght o
control the use of an Wentified asset, the Company assesses whether, (1) the contact invalves the use of an denufied asset (2) the Company has
substannally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the penod of the lease and (3) the Company has the nght to dicect the use of
the asset

The Company recognizes a right-of-use

sset and a corresponding lease hability for all |

se arrangements m which it s a lessee, except for leases with
a rerm of twelve months or less (shorr-term leases) and leases for low value underdying assets. For these short-reem and leases for low value
underlying assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an uperating expense on a strught-ine basis over the teem of the lease. Certan lease
arrangements mnclude the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Rightof use assers and lease habilities include these
options when it is reasonably certain that the option to extend the lease wall be exercised/option 1o terminate the lease waill not be exercised.

The nght-of-use assers are mnally recognized at cost, which comprnses the it amount of the lease hability adjusted for any lease payments made at
ot priot to the commencement date of the lease plus any mital dieeer coses less any lease ncennwves. They are subsequently measured ar cost less
accumulated depresation/amortization and imparment losses, Right-of-use assets are depreciated /amortized from the commencement date 1o the
end of the useful life of the undedying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the undedying asset by the end of lease term orif the cost of nghtof
use assets reflects thar the purchase option will be exercised. Otherwase, Right-of-use assets are depreciated /amortized from the commencement date
on a steught-hine basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underdying asset

Raght-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i arcumstances mdicate that ther carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (e the hagher of the fair value less cose w sell and the value-in-use) 15
determined on an wdwvidual asset basis unless the asset does not geneeate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assers. In such
cases, the recoverable

The lease hability 15 mutially measured ar amortized cost at the present value of the furuee lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate impheit w the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the ncremental borrowmg rate. Lease labilines are re-measured wath a
correspending adjustment to the related nght-of-use asser of the Company changes s assessment whether it wall exercise an extension or a
termination eption. In the comparative period, as lessee the leases were accounted as per Ind AS 17 and classified as finance lease and operating lease,
and accounted as follows:

Einance Lease

In the comparative penod, leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee has substanually all nsks and rewards of ownesship
were classified as finance lease, On inital rccugnitiun, assets held under finance leases were recorded as property, plant and equipment and the related
liability was recognized under borrowings. At mception of the lease, finance leases were recorded at amounts equal to the far value of the leased asset
or if lower the present value of the minimum lease payments. Mimmum lease payments amounts under finance leases were apporuoned between the
finance cost and the reduction of the putstanding liability. The finance cost was allocared o each penod dunng the lease term $0 as o produce a
constant penodic rate of mterest on the remaining balance of the habliry

Operating leases

In the comparative penod, leases  whach a sigmificant pornon of the nsks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Company as lessee
are classified as operaong lease. Payments made under operating leases were recogmized as an expense on a strught-line basis over the lease term
unless the payments were structured to increase n line with expected general wflanon to compensate for the lessor's expected mflationary cost
increases. Lease incentives received were recognized as an mtegeal part of the toml lease expense, over the rerm of the lease

Impairment

Assessment 15 done annually as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and mtangible) may be impaiced. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the smallest identfiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from contnumg use that are largely independent of the cash nflows
from other assets or groups of assets, 15 considered as a cash generatng unat. 1f any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of
the asset / cash penerating unit 15 made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds ther recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount s higher of an asset’s or cash generanng unit’s fur value Jes

st tor sell and ats vilue i use. Value i use s the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to adse from the contnung use of an asser and From s disposal ar the end of ns useful life, Assessment s also
done ar each Balance Sheet date as to whether there s any indicanon that an imparment loss recrognazed for an asset n prior accounting perinds may
no longee exst o may have decreased. In such cases, impaitment Josses are rovorsed 10 the gstent the ascers carmving amount dees not exceed, the

carrying amount that would have been determned if no imparrment loss had previously been recognized




Inventories
The cost of inventories shall comprse all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other custs meurred 0 bonging the wventones to ther present

location and condition.

Inventories are valued at the lower of Cost and Net Realsable Value.

The cost of vanous categories of inventories are deteemined as follows:

(a) Stores and spares, raw materials and packing matenals: at moving weighted average basis.

(b} Work-in-progress and finished goods: Cost ncludes direct materials and labour and a propotion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost s determined on a moving wesghred average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in beanging the mventones
tar their present locaton and condition, Cost is determined on a weighted average basis,

Materals and other stems held for use i the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
meorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Capital Commitments

General

Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 15 probable that an outflow
of resources embodymg economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgaton and a rehiable estmate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of 4 provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an msurance contract, the rambursement 15 recognised
as a sepacate asset, but only when the rambussement 1s virtually cerrn. The expense relanng to a provision 15 preseated in the statement of profit and
lrss met o anv rvmbnegement

If the effect of the nme value of money &5 material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rte that reflects, when approprate, the nsks
specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

The Company estimates the liability for the purposes of recagnising and measuring provisions for wareanty obligations, in relation to repair or replace
the stems that fail to perform satisfactorily dunng the warranty penod. Warranty provisions are recogmised when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are sold or a service 1s provided, In order to derermine the level of the provision, varous factors are taken into consideration, meluding
estimations based on past expenence with the nature and amount of clums, technical evaluanons ete, These estmations also involve assessing the
future level of potenual cepair costs. Provisions for warrantics are adjusted regulardy 1o take account of new circumstances and the impact of any
changes recognised in the mcome statement.

If the effect of the ttme value of money 18 matenal, provisions are discounted usig a cureent pre-tax rate that reflects, when approprate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting 1 used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of tme is recogmised a5 4 finance cost. No
reimbursements are expected,

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be contnued by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company ora present obligation that s not recogmized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to sertle the obligaton. A contingent liability also asises in extremely rare cases where there is a Lability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize 1 contingent liabihty bur discloses its existence i the
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue, compnsing of sale of Fumniture Products, 15 récognised when performance obligation is satisfied and it 1s highly probable that 2 sigmficant
reversal will not occur. Turnover is recognised when control of the products being sold has transferred to customer and when there are no longer any
unfulfilled obligations o the customer. This 1s generally on delivery to the customer but depending on wdividual customer terms, this can be at the
tume of dispatch, delvery or upon formal customer acceptance. This 1 considered the appropriate point where the performance obligations are
sapsfied and the company no longer have control over the inventory. The transfer of control of products to our customers i typically based on
written sales terms that in certain cases allows for a nght of retuen

An esumare is made for goods that will be retusned based on such rights and hability, i any, 15 recogmsed for this amount. An asset 15 also recorded
For the corresponding inventory that is estimared to return using a best estimate based on accumulared experience.

Turnover comprises sales of goods after the deduction of discounts on sales. Discounts given includes rebates, price reductions and other incentives
given to customers. Accumulated experience 15 used to estimate the discounts, using the most likely amount method.

The products are sold for cash or on credit teems. The credit terms, which are established in accordance with local and industry practices, typically
require payment within 0 to 60 days of delivery in and may allow discounts for early payment,




3.

HIY

Other items of revenue
Interest income - Revenue is recognised on 4 time proportion basis under the effective interest method tiking into account the amount ourstanding
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income 1 included under the head “other income i the statement of profit and loss

Taxes
Current income tax

The mcome tax expense or eredit for the period is the tax payable on the current penod’s taxable ncome based on the apphicable meome tax rate for
cach junsdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tx assets and liabilities attriburable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current meome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantin ely enacted at the end of the reporting period i the
countries where the Company operate and generate raxable income. Management penodically evaluates positions raken in tax retuens with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject 1o mterpretation. [t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be pad to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax s provided iy full, using the Hability method, on temporary difféerences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carying amounts n the financial statements, [lowever, deferred tax habilities are not recopmised if they anse from the mital recognition of
goodwill

Deferred mcome tax 15 also not accounted for if it anses from il recogmmon of an asset or hability i a teansacnon other than a business
combination that at the ume of the rransacton affeets neither accounting profit nor taxable proft (Fu loss),

Deferred income tax 15 deteemined using tix eates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacred by the end of the reporting penoed and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset s realised or the deferred income tas ability 1s settled,

Dieferred tax assets are recognsed for all deductible temporary differences and unused i losses only 1f 1t probable that future txable amounts will
be available to utilise those remporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assers and habiliies are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to offser current tax assers and habilites and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax habilines are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends erther to settle on a ner basss, or to realise the asset and sertle the lability simultancously

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable whally within twelve months are classified as shost rerm employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term
campensated absences, performance incentives ete. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recoprsed in the statement of prafit and loss during
the penod i which the employee renders related service

Payments w0 defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have sendered the service entithng them to
the contribution

Provident fund

Retitement benefit in the form of Provident Funds (where contabuted to the Regional PF Commussioner) s 3 defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contibution payable to the provident fund The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. 1f the contnibution pavable to rthe scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contnbuton atready paid, the deficit payable o the scheme 15 recogmized as a liability after
deducting the contribution aleeady paid, If the contribution already paid exceeds the contnibunion due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recogmized as an asset to the exrent that the pre-paymient will lead 1o 3 reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Long-term employee benefits:

Gratuity

The liability or asset recogmised in the balance sheet n respect of defined benefit gratwity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected
unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated m [NR 15 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outBows by reference
to market yields ar the end of the teporting penod on government bonds that have terms approsimating to the terms of the related obligation, The
benefits which are denominated in currency othee than INR, the cash fows are discounted using market yields determined by teference to high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be pand, and that have terms approximating to the teems of
the related obligaton.

The net interest cost s calculated by applying the discount rate 1o the net balance of the defined benefit obliganon and the fur value of plan assets.
This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and luss.

Re-measurement gins and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are recogmised in the pertod in which they
oecur, directly in other comprehensive income.

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet, Changes in the present value of the defing
benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or custailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past scovice cost.




3.2

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized withm the next 12 months, 18 treated as short term employee benefit The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additonal amount that it expects o pay as a cesult of the unused enttlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date. Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates.

Long term compensated absences are provded for based on estmates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial
valuation. The actuanial valuation s done as per projected umt credit method. Such lomge wem compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarl valuaton using the projected unit credit method at the year-end Actuanal gmns/losses are immeduately taken to the starement of profit and
loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entre leave as 4 cureent babiliny i the balance sheer, smee it does not have an uncondiional
nght to defer s serdement for 12 months after reporting date

Foreign currency transactions

Iterns mncluded i the financial statements are measured using the currency of the prmary economic enviconment in which the entity operaies (“the
functional currency”). The financial statements are presented i Indian rupee (INR), which 15 Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Forteign curcency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gans and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the reanslanon of mongtary assets and labihbes denomnated n foregn
currencies at year end exchange rates are recogmsed in profit or loss

Foreign exchange diffesences regarded as an adjustment 10 borrowing costs are presented m the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gans and losses are presented i the statement of profit and loss on @ net basis within other gains, (losses)

Transactions in foreign currencies are mittally recorded by the Company at s funcoonal currency spot sates at the date the transacnion first qualifies
for recognition.

Monetary assets and labilitics denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the funchional currency spor rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

A financal insteument 1s any conteact thar mves ose to 1 inancal asset of one enony and a financial lability or equiry nstrument of another entity
Financial assets

Initial recognition and

All finaneial assets are recognised watally at fasc value plus, in the case of Anancal assers not recorded at far value through profit or loss, teansacton
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Teansaction costs of financial assets carried at fae value through profit ot loss are
expensed in profit oc loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assers within a ume frame established by regulation of
convention in the market place (regulac way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 1., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asser.

q
For purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified m following categores
-Debt mstruments at amortised cost
-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (VTOCT)
-Debt wmstruments, denvatives and equity istruments at 'faie value theough profit or loss' (FVITPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive mcome (FVIOCE

Debr instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ s measured at the amortsed costif both the following condiions ace met:
a) The asset is held within a business mode] whose objective 1s 1o hold assers for enllecnng contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates  cash fluws that are solely payments of princpal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortrsed cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amorused
cost 15 caleulated by tking into account any discount Gr premaim on acquisnon and fees o costs that are an itegeal part of the BIR The EIR
amortisation 1s nclided in finance ncome in the profit or loss, The losses ansing from imparment are recogmised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other recevables.




Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A 'debi instrument’ is classified as at the 1FVTOCI if buth of the following cotena are met
1) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the ['VTOC] category are measured intially ag well as at each reporung dare at fur value. Far value movements are
recognized tn the other comprehensive meome (OCI). However, the company recogmizcs interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foregn
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On desecognition of the asset, cumnulative gain or loss previously recagnised n OCT s reclassified from the equity
10 P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is teported as interest mcome using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

'VTPL is a residual category for debt mstruments. Any debr isistrament, which dues not meet the entena for Categorisanon as at amortised cost oras
FVTOCL 15 dassified as ar FVTPL. In additon, the Lompany

FVTOCT eritenia, as at FVTPL, However, such elecnon s allowed only 1 domng so reduces or elumpites & MEASUTEITIENE G TECOEMton MCOnSISeacy
(referred to as ‘accountng musmarch’). Debt instruments wicluded within the FVTPL caregory are measured at fare value wath all changes recogmzed
in the statement of profit and loss.

may clect 1o desipnate 4 debr instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or

Equity instruments

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, equity nstruments are classified m two categories:

“Fquity instruments at fir value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive mcome (FYTOCL)

All equity investments are measured at far value. The Company may make an srrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes n the faur vilue. e Company makes such elecion an an nstrument _by-istrument basss. The classdication 1 made on mitial
recogmition and 15 irrevocable. Bquity instruments nchuded within the FVTPL category are measured at faur value with all changes recagnized in the
statement of profit and loss.

If the Company decides to classify an equity insteument as at FVTOCL, then all far value changes on the insteument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCL There 15 no tecycling of the amounts from OCL to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gamn or loss within equty

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 3 financial asset or paet of a Company of similae financial assets) is prmanly derecogmised (i.e.
cemoved from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights tm receive cash flows from the asser have expired, or

- The Company has transferred 1ts nghts 1o recave cash flows from the asset or has assumed an oblganon o pay the recaved cash flows i full
without material delay to a thied party under ‘pass-through' arcangement, and cither {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
cewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred not retaned substannally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has reansferred
control of the asset,

When the Company has teansferred 1ts nghts to tecewe cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership When it has neither ransferred nor retained substantially all of the nsks and rewards
of the asset, nos transferred control of the asset, the Company contmucs 10 [ECogmse the transfersed asset to the extent of the Company’s continung
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on 2
basts that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retamed

Contimung mvolvement that takes the form of 4 guarantee over the transferred asset w measured at the Tower of the ongnal catrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to tepiy

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basts the expected credit losses associated with its assets carned at amottised cost and FVTOCT debt

instruments. The impairment methadology applied depends on whether there has been 2 significant increase in credit risk since wnitial recogaiton.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, which requires expected
fifetime losses o be recognised from ininal recognition of the receivables.
Financial liabilities

Initial and t

Financial liabilities are classified, at inital secogmnon, as financial labilities at far value through profit ot loss, loans and borcowings, payables, or as
desivatives. All financial liabilities are recogmsed initially at fur value and, in the ¢

¢ oF loans and burrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs, The Company’s financial labilities include trade and other payables, loans and boreowmngs including dervative financial msteuments.




Sk

q
The measurement of financial iabilines depends on their classification, as deseabed below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial habiines at fair value through profit or loss include financeal habiines held for trading and financial labidines designated upon mitial
recognition as at faw value through profit or loss. Financial Habilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
tepurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses an habihties held for trading are recognised in the profic or loss

Loans and borrowings

After imtal recogninon, mterest-bearng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gans and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amorosation process.

Amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount ot premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The
EIR amornsation 15 included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial habidity is derccognised when the obligation under the lability s discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial halidity 1s
replaced by another from the same lender on substantally different terms, or the rerms of an exisnng habiity are substantally modified, such an
exchange or modification s treated as the derecogmnon of the ongmal hability and the recognision of @ new habihty. The difference i the respective
carrying amounts 15 recognised i the statement of profit oc loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Finaneial assers and financial labilities are offser and the net amount is reported 1 the balance sheet of there 15 a currently enforceable legal nght to
offset the recognised amounts and there 15 an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilines simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet compnse cash at banks and on hind and short-teem depusits with an onginal matunty of three months
or less

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculared by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shacehelders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the penod
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares ourstanding during the penod are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangemenr of borrowangs and exchange
differences ansing from foreym currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly artbutable to the acquisition, construction or producton of an asset that necessanly takes a substantial period of tme to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asser. All other borrowing costs are expensed 1n the penod they
CCTUT,

Segment Reporting policies

Operating segments ate reported in & manner consistent with the mternal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Chief Operanng
Decision Maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of products manufactured, traded and services provided, with each
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and seeves different mackets: The analysis of geographical segments 15
based on the locations of customers.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopred for prepanng and presenting financial statements
of the Company.
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts are m lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

3. Pruperty, plant and equipment

Furniture &
Particulars = Rlantids Computers | fixtures, Office | Lease hald Total
Equipment : Improvement
Equipment
Gross block (w Cost)
As at 01st Apnil 2018 229 5.74 0.50 9.21 27,78
Addstons 1010 W41 2338 #1.83 145.74
Dhsposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2019 22.39 36.19 23,88 91.06 173.52
As at 0lst April 2019 22.39 36.19 23.88 9L06 173.53
Additions 1106 8.25 .77 L70 32,78
Dusposals - - - (20.16) (20.16)
Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2020 3345 4445 35.65 72.61 186.16
A lated D o
As at 0lst April 2018 0,47 .60 0,03 0.49 159
Chargy for the year 147 (%] 1wk 1370 2329
Deduetions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 1.54 7.44 L71 14.19 24.88
As at 01st April 2019 L5 T4 171 14.19 24.88
Chatge for the vear 2.20 9243 3.99 18.28 33.90
Dreductions - 0.35 0.35
As at March 31, 2020 374 16.87 5.70 32.82 59.13
Net book value
Asat March 31, 2019 20.85 28.76 217 76.87 148.64
As at March 31, 2020 2971 27.58 29.95 39.79 127.03
Capital work -in-progress
Particulars Amount 31-03- | Amount 31.03- |
2020 2019
As at the beginning of the year - =
Additions . 3
Capialisations 5 &
As at end of the year : %
Refer note 13 for the wformanon on plant, property and equipment pledged as secunty by the Company
4. Right of Use Assets
Particulars Building Flacis g Total
- Equipment
Gross Block
As at Olst April 2019 |
Additons 2502.82 27R.04 2.780.1
Disposals S .
As at March 31, 2020 2,502.82 278,09 2,780.91
As at Olst April 2019
Charge for the year 312.85 .76 34701
Deducnons .
As at March 31, 2020 312.85 34.76 347.61
Net book value
Asat March 31, 2019 & -
As at March 31, 2020 2,189.96 243,33 2,433.29

Lease Expenditure selating to Shurt Term lease for the vear ended 3sr Mareh 2020 5 Re 566,38 lacs

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with a modified retrospective approach effecnve Apel 01, 2019, The adoption of this standard
resulied in recognition of nht-of-use assets and lease liabilities of Rs. 2780.91 kacs as on the teansition date. The above transition has resulted
i an inerease in depeeciation for the year by Re347.61acs in interest cost by K. 23803 lacs and decrease m Rent expense by Bs494.25 lacs,

Also refer Note No.15 & Note Na.29
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited :
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amoun = are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

5. Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total
1Emss block l
As at 0lst April 2018 043 .45
Addinons (300 630
[Dhsposals

As at March 31, 2019 6.95 6.95
As at 01st April 2019 6.95 6.95
Addimons 380 380
Dhsposals

As at March 31, 2020 12.75 12.75
Amortization

As at Olst April 2018 .01 m
Addinon 1132 032
Disposals -

As at March 31, 2019 0.33 0.33
As at 0lst April 2019 (133 (.33
Addinon 1.68 1.68
Dhsposals

As at March 31, 2020 2.01 2.01

Net book value
As ar March 31, 2019 6.62 .62
As ar March 51, 2020 10.74 10.74

6. Financial assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Non Current Current Non Current Current
Loans (Unsecured and considered good)
Secunty Deposies{ Amurtised cost) ¥2.35 292 1R296 51.7%
Toral 82.25 2.92 182.96 57.78

In the management's apimon, the above deposits do nat fall in the category of Toans and receviables which have a sigmficant inerease i Credir Risk or Loans
and recervables which are coedit impaired.

This space has been intennionally left blank
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

7. Other assets
(Unsecured and considered good)

3lst Mar 2020

31st Mar 2019

oy Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Balance with Statutory Authorities 225.86 306.57
Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind 1.34 A 175
Prepasd expenses 421005 6291 63.63 3586
Total 42.03 290.12 65.63 364.16

8. Inventories
(Lower of Cost and Net realisable value)

Particulars 3lst Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Inventory

1413282 852.33
Raw matenals and components including Packing marenals

] 238.67

Work-in-progress TR s
Fiushed goods 119412 991.56
Traded goods 201.17 527.46
Stores and spares M2 3847
Total 2,732.97 2,648.49
Details of inventory
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Details of inventory - Raw Marerials and components
including Packing materials
Particle boards 232.33 237.51
Decortive papers 27278 317.53
Packing matenals 3470 17.15
Others 493.01 200.14
Total 1,032.82 852.33
Details of inventory of traded goods
Furruture and accessories 29117 527.46
Details of inventory of finished goods
Furmiture and accessories 1,194.12 Y91.56

The cost of nventones recognised as an expenses dunng the year 15 as per Note No.208& 21

The management has teviewed the carrying value of mventores by assessing the net realizable value which 15 determined by forecasting selling price
and estimated cost to make the sales, including for items that are long aged. This review by the management resulted in write down of nventory o
the extent of Rs.70.86 Lacs which s adiusted as write down of inventury to its net cealsable value. Mo further provision s considered necessary by

the management.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwase stated)

9. Trade receivables

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Unsecured considered good
Trade recernvables 1,168.41 1,833.11
Recewvables from related pacties (Note 300) 125.66
Less : Expected credit loss allowance
Total 1,168.41 1,958.77

Trade recervables which have ssgnificant increase i credit nisk
Trade recewvables which are credit impaired

Total 5

For terms and condinons relating to related party recenvables, refer Note 28

Trade recevables, ather than the showriom sales, are nonanterest beanne and are menerally on eeme of 30 to 60 days. The showrmom sales are

generally on cash basis

Since the managment of the company expects full realisation of recuvables based on past trend,no allowances towards non reeovery of dues is
E i [

considered necessary

Mavement n expected credit loss allowance

Particulars 31st Mar 2020

31st Mar 2019

Balance at beginning of the year
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade recevables
Amount watten off dunng the year

Balance at end of the year =

10a. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
2. Balances with banks

- On current accounts 6.22 18.22
b. Cash on hand 1276 50.14
¢. Cheques/draft on hand .61 7.62
Total 19.58 81.98
Includes amount outstanding 10 a bank account treated as dormant Rs 1124 Lacs
10b. Other bank balances
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Current
Balances with banks:

Deposits with remanung matunty between 3 to 12 months 1.26 1.26
Total 1.26 126

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

11. Share Capital

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Authorised shares =
3,70,00,000 (PY 3.00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ 3,000
each 3,700

3,700 3,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
3,60,10,000 (/¥ 2.80./0,000 ) equuty shares of Rs. 10/- 1601 2,801
each fully paid up ’
Total 3,601 1,801

The company has increased its authorised share capital to Rs.3,700 lacs vide resolution passed m EGM dated 26th Sep 2019
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

As at 31st March 2020 As at st March 2019
Particulars No. of shares  Amount in Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.
At the beginnig of the period 28,010,000 2,801 28,010,000 2,801
Issued during the period 8,000,000 800 - -
Outshnding at the end of the period 36,010,000 3,601 28,010,000 1,801

b. Terms / Rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10/~ per share. In the event of hquidation of Company, the distribunion will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by shares holder (30 49:1)

The parties shall at all times, post the closing . participate in the Equity Share Capital in the following proportion

Parties Sharcholding Percentage (Yo )
Forte and/or its Affiliates 50
IFPL and/or its Affihates 50
Total 100

Except for transfer to affiliate in accordance with J'V agreement, neither Forte nor IFPL shall directly or indurectly transter any equity shares held by them in the Company
until the expiry of a period of 5 years from the date of closing. During the earlier year, IFPL has nansferred 137 20 Lac equity shares to an affilinte, M/s.Zuan Global

The Composition of Board of Directors will be in the

manner below.
Nominee of Parties Number of Directors
Forte Nominees 2
IFPL Nominees 3
CEQ (nomuinee of any Party and appointed by the mutual |
consent of the Parties}
Tatal [3
¢. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/: iates and sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
315t Mar 2020 J1st Mar 2019
Name of the Shareholder No. of shares  Amount in Rs. No. of shares  Amount in Rs,
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Fabryki Mebl "Forte"(50%) 18,005,000 1,800.50 14,005,000 1,400.50
Indian Furniture Products Limited (IFPL) (1.02%) 366,400 30,64 285,000 28.50
Zuari Global Limited (ZGL) (48.98%) 17,638,000 1,763.86 13,720,000 1,372.00
36,010,000 3,601 28,010,000 1,501

As per records of the C inchudi it holders’ I

Tl of shar

shareholding represents both legial and beneﬁcml?:wnershms of shares

and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

This space has been intenuonally left blank
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Forte Furniture Producis India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

12. Other Equity

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
As at the beginning of the year (4,7401.13) (3,138.5%)
Net (loss) for the year/penod (2,594.14) (1,5511.42)
Re-measurement gamns (Josses) on defined benefit plans 3085 (51.18)
As at the end of the year (7,303.44) (4,740.13)
13. Borrowings (Non current)

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

Unsecured loans
Loan from Related Party - ECB (Refer Nore 28 1,883.01 1,276.13

Toral 1,883.01 1,276.13

* The Company has receved Buro 16,42,335 m 2017-18 and Buro 6,32,660 in 2019-20 as ECB from the share holder Febnky Mebli The rate of
intetest is 6 month Buro Libor + 3.5% and pavable on quarterdy basss and the loan s repayable at the end of 5th year

Default in payment of interest-Rs.73.56 lacs

13a. Borrowings (Current)

Particulars 3l1st Mar 2020 3lst Mar 2019
From bank
Secured
Loan repayable on demand
Cash Credat 1,790.28 1.014.84
From other party
Unsecured loans
Inter cotporate deposits from related party (Refer Note.28) 1,050.00 1,250.00
Total 2,840.28 2,864.84

1) Cash Credit

The Company has been sanctioned loan of Rs. 1850 Lacs ro meer the working capatal needs from [C1CT Bank Lamuted at an Interest rate of 9 to
11% and the same will be payable within 12 months or 30 days prior to expiry of SBLC whichever 1s earher from the date of each drawl The cash
credit Demand facility s secured against fist pari pasu charge on the entire current assets of the Company, buth present and future and second
pan pasu charge over movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future, Fucther, the facility has been guaranteed by comfort letter of
M/s. Zuar Global Limited for Cash Credit and by FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 5.A Ostrow Mazowsecka, Poland for SBLC The amount
outstanding as on 31st March 2020 of Rs.1,790.28 Lacs

2) Inter corporate deposit

The Company has recewed an Inter Corporate Depust from Indian Furmituee Products Lumated for Rs.850 lacs dunng the year 2017-18 and Rs.
200 lacs in 2019-20 repayable with one year from the date of avadment at an imterest rate of 1275% paDunng the vear this fachbity is rolled over
for one year and falls due by December 2020,

Default in payment of interest-Rs.353.12 lacs

14. Trade payables

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Trade Payables :
- Related Party -Febne Mebh (Refer Note 28) 861.52 49236
- Dues to MSMERefer MNote 31 175.59 93.24
- Trade payables other than above 1,368.53 1,772.39
Total 2,403.64 2,357.99
rms an iti ial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest beanng and are normally settled in accordance with teems of the purchase orders. For imported matenals, the
same are normally procured against 180 days Letter of credit.
For terms and conditions with related party, refer to Note 28
For explanations on the Company's credit aisk management processes, refer to TNote 20,

For diselosure of dues to MSME - Note No3l
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

15, Other Financial Liabilities
Puctioulas Non- Current Current Non- Current Current
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 420.6Y 225.84
Lease Liabihties 2,105.32 419.38 -
Employee related payables
- Related Parties (Refer Note 28) 19.91 - 17.02
- Others 120.83 - 144.12
Secunity deposits from dealers and employees 62.26 - 15241
Total 2,105.32 1,049.07 - 539.38
Movement in Lease liability 31st Mar 2020
Balance as on April 01, 2019 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of IND AS 116 2,780.91
Finance costs accrued during the penod 238.05
Payment of lease liability (494.25)
Balance as on 31st March 2020 2,524.70
16. Other Current Liabilities
2 Current Current
Particulars
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
TDS payable 2422 28.606
Others Statutory dues payable 19.06 13.89
Total 43.27 42.55
17. Provisions (Current and Non-Current)
; 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Provision for leave benefits (Unfunded) 65.29 43.45 121.16 23.24
- Provisions for gratuity (Refer Note 34 ) 187.95 34.75 221.01 36.53
Others provisions:
Provision for Warranty 7] 6.54 # 10,22
Total 253.24 84.74 34217 69.99
* The movement for “Provisions for Warranty” dunng the penod is as follows -
Fanticalii Current Current
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Opening Balance 10.22 993
Additions dunng the penod 6.54 10.22
Amount used during the period - -
Unused amount reversed during the period (10.22) (9.93)
Unwinding of discount and changes in the discount rate - -
Closing Balance 6.54 10.22

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Forte Furniture Produces India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

18. Revenue From Operations 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Revenue from operations
Sale of products(including excise duty)
- Finished goods 5,581.33 6,473.01
- Traded goods 849.29 2,044.20
Total sale of products 6,430.62 8,517.27
Sale of Services
- Comnussion 107.33 165.02
- Services 5142 34,58
Other operating revenue
Scrap Sales 13,98 19.25
Total 6,603.36 8,736.72
19, Other income
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Interest mcome:
On bank deposits 1.12 0.02
Unwinding of Interest on securty deposits given 37 12,61
Excess provision/ uncluimed liabilines/ unclaimed balances wntten back/Noue Pay §3.22 152.560
Unrealised forex Gan 39.48
Total 88.04 204.67
20. Cost of raw materials and components including packing maternals consumed
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
a. Raw materials and components including packing material consumed
Opening stock 852.33 656.07
Purchases 3.287.54 3,246.60
Less: Sale of Raw Matenals and components including packing marenals consumed - 12.66
Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,032.82 852,33
Total (Refer Note below) 3,107.06 3,048.65
Note : 20.1
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Raw Materials and compenents including packing materials consumed
- Particle boards 1,463.27 1,502.27
- Decorative papers 358.60 42851
- Packing materials 323.85 271.69
- Others 961.27 B40.18
Total 3,107.06 3,048,65
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
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21. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Inventories at the end of the period
Work-in-progress 160,60 238.67
Traded goods 291.17 527 40
Finished goods 1,194.12 991.56
1,645.89 1,757.69
Inventories at the begninig of the period
Waork-in-progress 238.07 184.90
Traded goods 527.46 548,68
Finished goods 991.50 1.107.78
1,757.69 1,841.36
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 111.80 83.67
22. Employee benefits exp
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,604.27 1,671.12
Contribution to provident and other funds 62.69 7340
Gratuity expense - (Refer Note 34 ) 41600 17.36
Employees' welfare expenses 41.76 41.72
Total 1,749.32 1,823.60
23, Finance Costs
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Interest on borrowings
- to banks 178.53 125.76
- to others * 509,70 209.22
Exchange difference regarded as an adustment to borrowing cost 138.22 21.21)
Bank charges 103.33 Bo.81
Total 929.79 400.58
24. Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (note 3 33.90 23,29
Depreciation on Right to use Assets (note 4) 347.61
Amortizanon of intangible assets (note 5) 1.68 0.32
Total 383.19 23.61
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Page 21




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

25. Other expense

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Power and fuel 251.66 262.80
Consumption of stores and spares 66.02 62.90
Repairs and maintenance:

Buildings 12.08 20.28

Plant and machinery 0.51 1.90

Others 116.39 110.16
Outward freight and forwarding charges 630.07 864.52
Rent 566.38 1,416.30
Provision for doubtful debts = 27.03
Fixed Asset of Scrapping 20.16
Rates and taxes 46.08 24.87
Insurance 44.13 54.03
Travelling and conveyance 15 B 0 147.26
Legal and Professional fees 63.40 76.39
Payment to auditors (Refer Note below) 9.00 9.00
Bank Charges 42.15 97.86
Communication costs 29.94 4248
Advertising and sales promotion 210.00 521.41
Provision for warranties 6.54 10.22
Exchange differences (net) 15.99 -
Miscellaneous expenses 96.03 84.85
Total 2,337.711 3,834.26
Note 25.1
Payment to statutory auditors for 31st Mar 2020 31 March 2019
Audit fee 9.00 9.00
Total 9.00 9.00
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwase stated)

28. Related party disclosures
The list of related parties as identified by the management are as under:

A. Related Partics with whom transactions have taken place during the period.
1. Joint Venturer of the Company:
1} Indian Furniture Products Limited, India.
2) FABRYKI MEBL] "FORTE" S.A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland.
3) Zuan Global Limuted, India

I1. Other Associate Companies
1) Zuan Agro Chemicals Limited
2) Gobind Sugar Mills Limited

I11. Key Managerial Personnal

1) Andrze) Szeygmel - Chief Executve Officer and Whole Time Director
2) Brjay Kumar Biswal - Chief Fimancal Officer

1) AL Laxman - Company Secretary

Related Party Transacuon as per Accounting Stantard 24
- Following transactions were carried out with related pacties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31st March 2020

Year ended 31st March 2020 Year ended 31st March 2019
Other Other
SL.N . . i 7 i
Transaction details JoHit Asscociates Koy : Juion Asscociates Rey ;
0. Venture & Managerial | Venture & Managerial
Company Company Personnal | Company Compisy Personnal
1 |Purchase of Fimished Goods
- Indian Furniture Products Lamited 18.16 181.98 - .
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 5. A.Ostrow Mazowwecka, Poland 192.64 54.15 - -
2 |Sale of Raw Materials and components including packing matenals
- Indian Furniture Products Lamuted
- FABRYK] MEBLI "FORTE" §.A Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland
3 |Sale of Finished Goods
- Indian Furniture Products Limted 10411 390.86 -
- Zuari Glubal Limited - -
- Zuan Agro Chemieals Limated - 1.00
- Gobind Sugar Mills Linuted 246 - 1.09
4 |Sale of Services
- Indian Furniture Products Lumted 126,65 195.03
5 |Expenses Reimbursemient made
- Indian Fumniture Products Limited 454.92 466.96 - -
== - FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 8.A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland 26.51 19.36 - -
6 |Interest expense
Indian Furniture Products Limited 173.04 165.31
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 8. A.Ostrow Mazowiecks, Poland 48.37 38.62
7 |ECB/ 1CD Received
- Indian Furnimure Products Limited 200,001 - -
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 5. A.Ostrow Mazowsecka, Poland 490,54
§ [ECB/ 1CD Repaid back
- Indian Furniture Products Limited 40000
9 |Shase Capital Received
- Indian Furniture Products Limited 8.14 . -
- Zuan Global Lamited 30186
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 8.A.Ostrow Mazowecka, Poland 400,00 . - -
1) |Manageria! Remuneration
- Andreg) Brcyjel E26:005 - 126.22
- Bijay Kumar Biswal 6170 52.06
- AL Laxman 853 - 249
~ Prasanta Das
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Balance Outstanding as on 315t March 2020

Year ended 31st March 2020 Year ended 31st March 2019
i T . Other
BL.Nol Transaction details g ﬁs:z::::fmes e . Joiat Asscoc:ates Key :
Venture & Managerial| Venture & Managerial
Company C | Personnal | Company c Personnal
ompany ompany
I |As ECB/ 1CD Payables
- Indian Furniture Products Limited 1,050,000 1,250.00
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 8.A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland 1,883.01 1,276.13
2 |As Trade Payables
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 5. A Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland 743.62 492 36
- Indian Furniture Products Limited 11790
3 |As Trade Recevables
- Indian Furmiture Products Limited 140.28 -
- Zuan Global Limited 0.25
- Zuan Agro Chemucals Limuted - Lon
- Gobind Sugar Mills Linuted 1.21 - 1.09
4 |As Interest Payable on ECB / 1CD
- Indian Furniture Products Limired 353.13 196.85 -
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" 8. A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland 116.82 28.99 -
5 [Managenal Remuneration payable
- Andrze Szeygel 10.50 7.07
- Bijay Kumar Biswal 857 255
- AL Laxman .54 a7

Note
1 Zuan Global Limited has given comfort letter for cash credit/ WCDL facility availed by the Company
2 Febryki Mebli 'Forte' has given SBLC Bank guarantee for Over Draft Facility avatled by the company 11 ICICT Bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

(Al amaunts are n Jakhe of Indan Rupees unless atherwise staved)

29. Fi ial rigk bjecrives and policies

The Company's prncipal financil liabdines, comprise loans and borrowangs, trade and other payables, secunty deposits, employee labides. The main purpose of these fancial Labiines s to foance the Company’s
operations and 10 provide juamntess w support it operations. The Company’s principal faunenl assers welude loans, erade and other recervables, and cash and short-term deposts that deave directly from ats

operations.

The Company is exposed to credit eisk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these nsks: The Company’s senior management 18 supported by a Finance team that advises
on fAnancial risks and the approprate financil nsk povernanee famework for the Company. The Arasee wam provades assusnce o the Company's semor management that the Company’s fmancal nsk actrvines are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial rsks are idennfied, measured and managed m aceordance with the Company’s polices and sk objectives. It s the Company's policy that no tadmg

in derivatives for speculative purposes may be underraken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees polices for managnng each of these nsks, which ace summarssed below

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of Furure cash ows of 2 financial mstniment will fuctiate because of changes 1 marker prices. Market risk comprises three types of rsk: mterest rate sk, currency risk and

ather price tisk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Funnend mstrunents affected by market nsk nclude loans and borrwings and depasits

The sensivaty analysis n the following sectnons relate o the positon as at 31 March 2020

The sensitivity analysis have been prepased on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed w0 foanng mterest giees Of the debt and deewatives and the propernon of fnancial mstruments w forewn
currencees ace all constant and on the bass of hedge desygnanons m place at 31 March 2620

Interest rate nsk
Applicability - Fi e

Long-term debt obligations with fixed i rates.
Loan from Group Company

Short term loans with fixed interest rates
Cash Credat from bank
Inter corporate deposits

Tniterest mte risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Aows of a fnancizl mstrument will Buctate becanse of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposuee to the nsk of changes n market interest

sates celates primady to the Company’s long-teem debt oblgations wath foanng mierest gates:

The Company has used movement m bank rates by Réserve Bank of India for makmg 2 sensitvity analyss for mterest e nsk.

INR Borrowings
ELURCY Borrowmgs
INR Borrowngs
EURO Borrowings

Foreign currency risk
Applicability -

Foreign currency ask is the risk that the fair value or fature cash fAows of an exposure will fucnsat because of changes m foreign exchange rtes. The Company's exposure to the nsk of changes m forewym exchange

rates relates prmarily to the Compny's operting actrvitics,

The Company management consantly keeps a track of the foreign cureency movement and tikes advise from the Group trensury for hedmmng the foreygn exchange mtes. As the volume of transacnons and

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Increase/decrease  Effect on Effect on profit
in basis points profit before  before tax ( Rs.)
tax ( Re.)
+50 (14.20) (2143
+50 {942) 6.0
-3 14.20 2143
=30 042 G463

outstanding positon at a given pount of time 15 very low and the sk due to foreymn exchange flucnmaton would not be materal, the mansgement decded not to hedge the foregn currency exposure

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tbles demonstrate the sensitivary (o a resorably possible change m USD and EURO exchange mtes, with all other vagiables held constant, the impact on the Company’s profit before tax s due to

changes in the fair value of monetary labalines weluding non-desygnated forespn currency desvatives and embedded desvanves

“Inchades advance received from vendors

31-03-20
Effect on profit before tax
Borrowings  Trade Payables®

Change in EURO rate
+3% (33.41)
-5 3541
Change in USD rate
+53%a - (2.41)
3% 24
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

(Al ameunts are i lakhs of Indian Rupees unless atherwise staned)

Credit rizk

Credit esk is the risk that counteepaety will not meet s obligations under a financal mstaent or customer contracy, leaduny toa fnancal boss, The Company 15 esposed to credit nisk from its OPERnnE ACHVITes
(premanly trade recewables) and from s Brancing actvanies, mcluduyr deposss wath banks and fnancal st Foreen exchange rransacnons and other foancnl mstruments

Applicability
Trade eecervables
Inter Curporate Deposits
Deposits with Banks

Secunty deposits given

Trade receivables
Customer credir ask is maniged by momtonng ndiadual caregony customes subjecr -t the Company™s established policy, privedires and conrenl febitmg o cusromer credir nsk maragement. Ourstanding customer recenaibiles are
regulady momtared. Fased on the aig of cecermbles, the Company assesses the tecaverabilty of th amount from each CUSTUTIEL

An inp analysis 15 perf 4 ar each gep g dare on-an indiidual basis for major chents. In uddinion, o lirge number of minor secervibles ace srouped inro homopenous groups and ussessed for imparment vollecnvely The
caiculaion is based on exchange Josses hiscancal dat The Company does ot hold collaceral as securiry. Uhe Company evaluates the concentniton of ask with respect 10 trade recevables as low, a5 s cusromiees age Tocated m several
maisdictions and industnes and operate in binzely independent mackers.

Fil ial and cash deg .
Credit nsk from balances with banks and fnancial istirutions i maaged by the Company's finance deparment us accordance with the Company's policy Investments of surplus funds are made in fixed deponts with banks only,

Cownterparty credie lmits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directoes on an annual asis, The houts are ser 1o munmuse the concentration of risks and therefore mingate fnancal loss through counterparty's potenteal fadure to
ke payments

Liguidity risk
The Compiny momtors its nsk of a shormge of funds using licguaddiy: g 1ol
The Company monitars s nsk of a shomaee of funds
equivalents. The Company's abjectve 16 1o mamtan i bl

ugg furiee cash Buw progecnions. The Compine manags 4 guidiy needs v monroang cash flows feom Cusramers and by ouainsmning adeguare vash and cash

e berweun contmury of fundi sod fleabiliee g shaedibder tunds G Hireacdses Feom the oanr venture partmees

The rable below summanses the mutunty profile of the Compuny's financil habilines based o contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 110 5 years =5 years Total
months

Year ended
31-Mar-20
Borrowing: 179028 (REE L) LEES 478331
Trade payables 240304 244
Orher financil labiines 1,049.07 104 83 31454 1,791.28 11404 357377

5,242.99 104.85 1,364.54 3,674.30 31404 10,700.70
Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations anse when u number of counterpacties are enguged in smilar business activines, or activites i the same gegruphical regan, ar have evonomar feanures that would cause thedr ability v meet confsictual ubliggations 1o be
similadly affected by changes in economs, politcal or uther conditions, Cuncentrations mdicare the relatve sensitivity of the Company's performance m developmints affecring a parhcalic mdustey

In tedee o avoud excesaive concenreanons of sk, the Company's policies und provedures nclude specific guidelines o focus on the m v of a diversified portfolio. Idennfied conc wons of credic nsks are controlled and

managed accordingly

This space has been intentionally left blank
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30. Capital management

For the purpose of the .Zr:mp:my‘s capital management, capital includes 1ssted equiry capatal and all other LWy reserves attriburable to the equity holders of the
Company. The pamary objective of the Company'y capital management 15 1o masmse the shascholder valye

The Company's objectves for managing caparal fompose salemuarding the busmess s u RO Concem, cavanng valuye for stakeholders and SuppOrting rthe development
of the Company. In Particular, the Company seeks I mantun an adeyuare EAplaAnon that enables it g, achieve 0 sans faceon retum for shaccholders g CETTE
ACCess 1o external sources of financing, in part by mamtunng an adequate maung. In this context, the Lompany manages 1 capital steucture angd adyusts that strucrure
when changes in economie conditions so require.

In order 10 achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, ums o ensure thae It meets financial covenangs attached to the
interest-beanng loans and borrowings thar define capatal structure fequirements. Breachies 1n meeting the fimancial covenanty would permut the bank 1o immedsately cal]
loans and borrowings. There have been ng breaches in the financial covenanes of any nterest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current peod,

No changes were made n the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital duriny the Penod ended 31 March 2021,

The managemen constantly monitors and ge tews the debt o “quity fato. As part of this review, the managemeng considers the cost of capital and risks associated with
each class of capital regurements apg mamtenance of adequage hqusdity buffer
The posinon on reporting

date 1s summagze i the following table:

Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Debt
Bn:rowmgs[Nnn Current) - Note 13 1,883.01 1,276.13
Current matunties of long-term burruwmgx - -
Bcrruwiqg;.—((?urmm)- Note 13(2) 2,840.28 2,864,584

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents - Note 1)y (19.58) (81.98)

Net debt 4,703.71 4,058.98

Equaty 3,60 (W) 2801080

Other equry [7.303.44) (#,740.13)

Total Capital (3,702.44)

Capital and Net debe

Gearing ratio 191%

31. Details of dues o micro and small enterprises as defined under he MSMED Act, 2006

Dues to Micro Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partics have been wentified on the basis of nformation collecred by the cumpany
This has been relied upon by the auditors, Accarding to the records aviulable vt the Company certan amount have been idennified as dues o suppliers rewsteed
under Micro, S]] and Medium Enterprses Develupmene Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) The disclosure Pursuant o the sawd MSMED Act are as follows:

March 31, 2019
93.24

Principal amount due suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as ar
year end

Interest due 1o suppliers registeced under the MSMED Act ind remaining unpaid ag at year end

5.18

Principal amounts pawd to supplicrs regastered under the MSM) D Act, beyond the appomted day
duning the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 10 supphers registered under the
MSMED Aet, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Seenon 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers reptstered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day duning the year

Interest duc and payable wwards suppliers registered under MSMED Aet, for Payments alecady,
made

Fusther interest remaining

Labilities
Clums aguinst the campany not acknowelged g debr
Total
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33. Significant ing judg 5 esti and pti

The preparation of the Company’s financeal statements requires management to make judpements, cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
p + assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of ¢ ntingent liabilies. Uncersunty about these assumptions and estimates could result
i outcomes that require 4 material adjustment to the carryug amount of assets or labilities affected n fure perinds.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applyng the Company's accountng policies, management has made the followmg udgements, which have the host symfcant effect on the amounes
recogmsed m the financal statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilites may anse from the ordinary course of busmess in relanon to claims 4 181 the Companyanchicing legal. contractor, lind access and other clanns, By
therr nature, contingencies will be resolyerd only when ane or more uncertan future events oceur or fail © oecur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contngencies inherently involves the exercise of symificant judpement and the use of estimates regrding the cutcome of futice cvents

Estimates and assumptions

The key asswmptions concerning the furure and other key sources of estunation imcertunty at the repornng date, that have a sugrtficant risk of causting a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilines wathin the nexe fnancial year, are descrbed below, The Company based 1ts assumptions and estanates an parimeters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existng circumstances aned assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes ate reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

33.1 Impai of non-fi fal assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating wit exceeds its recoverable smount, which i the higher of its Fur value less costs of disposal and
1t value in use. The fur value less costs of disposal caleulation 15 based on avadable dam from binding sales transacoons, conducted ar arm'’s Tength, for similar assers or
observable market prices less meremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value m use caleubanon 15 bised ona DCF model The cash fows are derved from the budger
for the next five years and do ot welude restructunng activities that the Company s not yet commutted 1o or sygificant future mvestments thar will enhasice the asser's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable smount s sensitve 1o the discount tate used for the DCE model 4s well as the expected future cash-mfows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

33.2 Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avadable agamst which the losses can be utilised. Sigmificant
o :

Tt I 1§ required o d the amount of deferred tix assers that can be recogrised, based upon the likely nimmg and the level of fiure tazable profits
together with future tax planning strateges.

The Company has significant amount of fax losses carmied forward These losses, expre in 8 years and may not be used o offser tixable meome elsewhere in the Company.
On this basis, the Company has determmned thar it cannot recognise deferred mx assers on the mx losses carned forwaed,

33.3 Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit graruity plan and other defined benefit plans and the present value of the granuly wblgation are determined usmg-acruara) valuations. An
actuarial valuation mvolves making various assumptions that may differ from acrual developments in the furure. These melude the determmanion of the discount wite, furure
salary mereases and mortality rates. Due 1o the complexies myvolved m the valuaton and s L g tetn naute, a defned benefit oblymnon s highly sensinve o changes
these I . Alla fhions are reviewed at each reportng dare

The parameter tost subject to change is the discount rate, In detesnmning the approprate thscount rate for plans operated i Indi, the mianagement considers the mrerest
rates of government bonds i currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligaton, The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality
Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded From the analysis of bonds on which the discount rage 1= based, on the basis that they do nat represent high qqualrey
corporate bonds,

The mortality rate 1 based on publicly available morality tables for the specthic countnies. Those mortality tables rend 1o change only at meerval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity mcrenses are based on expected future mflation rates for the LESPECTIVE COURnties.

Further details about granury obhgations are given m Nate 34

33.4 Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry wnterest and are stated ar thetr nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated terecoverable amounts. Estimated
irtecoverable amounts are based on the agng of the recervable balances and historical experiences, Individual trade receivables are written off when nmanagement deems
them not be collectible,

33.5 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic (COVID-19)
Following the global outbreak of Corunavirus ({COVID-19) pandemic, the Government of Tudia ordeeed a complete natonwide lockdown on 24th Marel, 2020 which Has
been extended for further periods with certain specified relaxations. Accordingly, the aperations of the company have been suspended from thar date resulting m temporary
disruption of manufactunng, warehousing and distribution funcoions,

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandenie relating to COVID-1Y on the earryug amounts of property, plant and equipment, right
of use assets, inventones, mude recevables, and other financial assets. In developing the assumpuions relating to the possible future uncertunties n the gobal econumic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used internal and external sources of information including
credit reports/ related mformation and economic forecasts. While the COVID-19 may adversely unpact the business i the short term, the management does not anticipate
any material medium to lang rerm nisks 1o its business prospects. The Company has performed sensinvity analvsas on the assumpnons used and based on current esnmares
expects that the carying amount of the aforementioned assets will be recovered. Chven the uncertunties assocsred wirh name and duranon of the pandemic, the unpacr of
COVID-19 on the Company's fmancial statement may differ from that estumared as ar the date of approval of these fuancal statements: The company wall continue o
monitor future economic conditions and updare its asscssment
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M. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
Particulurg 31-Mar-20 S31-Mr-19

Plans
- Granuty I'Lmhihgxé 22270 25755

The Company has a defined Eratuty plan; Under the Eratuity plan, every employee whi s completed at least five vear of SETVICE BETS U pratuity on departure (@ 15 days of lust drren salary for esch complered year of
service. The scheme is non fanded

The following rables sumeacise the components of net benefi expense recognised m the stitement of profit ot luss and wmouns fevogmised m the ke sheet for the tespective pling

Net employee benefit y: (recognized in E ployee Cost) for the period ended 3lst March 2020

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Cureent Service Cost 2125 2313
Past service cost
Loss/(Gain) on settlement
Net interest cost

Chang!s in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, a5 follows:
Gratuity

Farticulars -Mar-20 I-Mar-19
Opening defined obligation 184.95
Current service cost a0

Pass secvice cost .
Interest cost 19.33
Benefits paid (4462
Remeasucement on the net defined benefit hability:

Actuanal {gin)/ loss on obliginons (30.83) 3118
Defined benefit obligation 222.70 257.55

The principal Assumptions used in ¢ ining ity obligations for the Company's plans ure shown below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Moreality Rate (% of TALM (H3-08) 10N 00 T
Discount eate {in Yo} 6555 T.70%,
Salary Escalation (in %) 5.00% 70
Withdrawal Rate pa. (in Ys) 10.00% 10085

A quanti itivity analysis for significant assumptious are shown as below:

Grawity Plan

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increasey
Sensitiviry Level 1% i sease 1% decrease 1% increase 1% devrease
Impict on defined benefir obligation 31-Mar 20 {3:80) 650 630 (6.00;

Sensitiviry Level % i rease 1Y deerease %% increige

Impact on defined benefir obligation 31-Mar 19 (. 720 720

The sersitivity due to maortality and withdrwals are nog materal & hence charge IMpact is not caleulared,

Sensitivities as to gate of mflation, eate of increase i PeRsion m payment, tite of wcrease i Pesision before retgement & Life EXpectancy are not applicable beng 4 3 lump sum Payment on reticement

The sensitvaty srlyses above have been determuned based un 4 method thar extepokites the mpact o defined benefir abligrion s i rosuls of reasonable changes i key #ssumptions ccuenng at the end of the reporting
penind.

The fullwing payments are expecred contributions 1o the defined benefis plin in future yeirs:
31-Mar-20

Within the next 12 months {next uanual reporting perod) M5
Between 2 and 5 years 16,75
Berween 5 and 10 yearg a7
Beyond 10 years 12499
Total expecied payments 357.46

The average durstion of the defined benefir plan obligation at the end of the feporting period is 7 yrirs

Long Term Compensated Absences

The assurmptions used for camputing the long teem sccumulated rompensited absences on actusnial basis dre s follows -

133% i
Salary growth rate S0 e
Attniton are Th(N 1 I
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35. The accumulated losses of the Company as at March 31, 2020 amounting to Bs 730343 lakhs has resulied n crosion of entre net worth as on that date. Fusther, the eompany
has meureed cash losses m the current year and alsa in the previous yeae. However, the company 15 anly m s thurd vear of full commerenl operations. Based on the projecnuns
of estumated Future cash Hows, duly adjusted for the probable impact en account of the Covid-19 pandermic as statedd above, the company expeets significant unprovement w the
operating results m the coming years. Further, the sharcholders have also committed to suppuet the company w the long reem, as evidenced by penodic mfusion of equity share
capital, ncluding Rs.800 lacs m the current year

Considening the above, the management 15 of the view that the company’s operanons will turn profimabile in the near future and that the company will be able to contnue as &
gomng concern and. Accordingly, the accounts have been drawn up on a gomg concern bass.

Further, raking into account the futuee cash tlow projections as stared above, the management 15 of the opmmon that there 15 no mpawment w the cazgyng vitlue of property, plant
and eguipment and Rol asser as on 31st March, 2020

36, Income Taxes
No provision for current taxes has been made w view of the lusses wiewrred m the cureent peeod, As i misiey of prodence, deterred Bx assets (et an accownt of losses has not
been taken credit for in the aceounts. The detatls of deductble temparary differenees and unused s losses on which delereed tax asser has not bees reocgrsed are as follows

Pitdin 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
(Rs.) Expiry Date (Rs.) Expiry Date
Deducuble Temporary Differences - Provision for Employee benefus a67.E NA 26574 NA
allowable on payment busis
Unused Tax Losses - Business Loss - AY 2017-18 726 AY.2023-20 726 AY.2025-26
- Business Loss - AY 2018-19 2061 AY.2026.27 206131 AY.2020-27
- Bustness Loss - AY 201920 1,534 AN 202728 AN 2027-28
Unused Tax Losses - Unabsorbed Deprecanon - AY 2017-18 NA NA
Unabsorbed Deprecumnon - AY 2018-1Y 713 NA 715 NA
Unabsorbed Deprecaton - AY 2019-20 3590 NA - NA

37. Earning per share

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profir fur the period atnbuable to equity holders of the Company Ly the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstandumg dusng the petiod.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Profit after tax (2.594.14) (1,330.42)
Wesghted average number of shates used in compunng eanmngs per share 290,18,219 280,106,000
Earmings per share — Basic and diured (n Ks.) (.94 (5.54)

38, Segment Information

Informan garding Primary Seg Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Board of directors monstors the operating tesults of s busmess as a smgle prumary segment © Manuacture, purchase and sile of Furnmuee” for the purpose of makng
operational decisions. The busiess of the Company flls under o smgle pranagy segment for the purpose of lnd AS 108,

Geographical Segments
The Company operates m India and therefore caters to the aceds of the domstic marker Therefore, there 1 only one geographical segment and hence, geograplical segment
mformaton 15 not required to be disclosed.
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